
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

June 6, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Mission and Vision Taylor Jones 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Policies (Remains under review/development, no request for action)  

1. Workplace Violence Prevention Program 

B. Employee Policy – Workplace Violence Prevention Policy (For Action)   Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel 

C. Board Policy – CEO Evaluation (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Policy –Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment (For Review) Kandi Pendleton 

B. Board Policy - Success/Talent Management Plan (For Review) Barbara Sowada 

C. Credentials Committee (For Action) Kerry Downs, Director of Medical Staff Services 

1. Pathology Privilege Form 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Taylor Jones 

B. Human Resources Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. FY24 Capital and Operating Budgets (For Action) 

2. Capital Expenditure Requests (For Action) 

3. Bad Debt (For Action) 

4. I.S. Report 

5. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey 

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Barbara Sowada 

I. Joint Conference Committee Barbara Sowada 

  

1/160



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

June 6, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 

IX. Contract Review            Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel 

 A.  Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Spectra Laboratories 

2. ARUP Laboratories 

X. Board Education  Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Wyoming Statutes Title 18 Chapter 8 

XI. Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts, Medical Staff President 

XII. Recognition & Appreciation          Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Good of the Order           Barbara Sowada 

XIV. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Barbara Sowada 

XV. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

XVI. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

2/160



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/160



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

May 3, 2023 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on May 

3, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, and Dr. Barbara Sowada.  

The following Trustees were excused: Mr. Taylor Jones and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff President; Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel; and Mr. Robb Slaughter, 

County Commissioner Liaison.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Ms. Pendleton read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Dr. Sowada said she has a friend who was recently in the Hospital who gave her permission to 

share that we “hit a home run out of the park with the bases loaded.” Her friend said it started with 

the pre-surgery information and said the follow-up care was outstanding. Dr. Sowada 

congratulated everyone for the fantastic care.  

 

AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion 

carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the April 5, 2023, regular meeting as presented was made 

by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.   

 

  

4/160



 

 

Minutes of the May 3, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

Employee Policies – Workplace Violence Prevention 

 

Dr. Sowada said work is still in progress. 

 

Board Meeting Guidelines 

 

The motion to approve the guidelines as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. 

Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

Employee Policies – Drug And Alcohol Free Workplace And Testing Policy With 

Substance Abuse Checklist 

 

The motion to approve the policy as amended to include minor changes recommended by Mr. 

Kelsey (“should” changed to “shall” and capitalize “Hospital”) was made by Ms. Pendleton; 

second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

Sentinel Event Policy 

 

The motion to approve the policy as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. 

Motion carried. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Board Policy – CEO Evaluation 

 

Dr. Sowada requested all comments on the proposed policy be sent to her and to Mr. Jones to bring 

to the Committee in June.  

 

Oncology Suite Project Bid 

 

Ms. Richardson reviewed the project and bid. She said we know we need to have the project 

complete so it is necessary to start as soon as possible. We requested bids and only received one. 

Ms. Richardson said she exercised her emergency authority to accept the sole bid and now is 

bringing it to the full Board for ratification. The bid received was in excess of the estimate. The 

higher rate has been explained. Mr. Kelsey said this was discussed extensively by the Building 

and Grounds Committee. We looked at all options and reviewed with the architect. Mr. Kelsey 

said we need to have it done and need to show the State Board of Pharmacy we are serious about 

getting it done. The motion to ratify the contract between the Hospital and A Pleasant for 

$998,300 as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

  

5/160



 

 

Minutes of the May 3, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Credentials Committee  

 

Proctors for Robot, Onboarding Packet: The motion to approve the information as presented was 

made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

General Surgery Privilege Form: The motion to approve the information as presented was made 

by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson provided a physician recruitment update and said we will bring some wonderful 

additions to the team. We continue to search for a urologist and a pediatrician. We have opened a 

search for a psychiatrist. Ms. Richardson said we continue to finetune the FY24 budget. She said 

it is a big budget with great detail and thanked Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, and her 

team for their work. We will present our budget to the County Commissioners at their meeting on 

May 16. We continue to move forward in the Critical Access Hospital process. Ms. Richardson 

said the State and our auditors have been very helpful. The DaVinci robot is onsite and we plan to 

start procedures this summer. Ms. Richardson thanked the Foundation for all they’ve done to help 

make it happen. She thanked the Board for allowing her to participate in the American Hospital 

Association (AHA). The annual meeting is primarily for visits with our legislators to discuss all 

the issues we are facing. Ms. Richardson said she is very proud we are the community’s hospital 

and for the exceptional, safe, quality care we provide. She said she is proud of how we take care 

of the entire community. She said all hospitals have the same issues and we need to work to 

stabilize the financial health of hospitals and health systems. Ms. Richardson said healthcare costs 

are at a record high. She said we need Congress to hold insurers accountable to helping with access 

to care and reign in increasing drug costs. She said we need to strengthen the healthcare workforce. 

Ms. Richardson said we need to secure the ability to continue to provide healthcare to 

communities. She said she appreciated the opportunity to advocate for our hospital. Ms. 

Richardson read aloud a letter received from Mr. Ron Wild of Rocky Mountain Power 

commending MHSC for our energy conservation efforts. Ms. Richardson said we continue to 

prepare for The Joint Commission survey and thanked the Quality Department and department 

leaders for their work in preparing. Ms. Richardson said National Hospital Week is May 8 – 12. 

The Wyoming Hospital Association Spring CEO and Trustee Conference will be held in Casper 

and Ms. Richardson and Dr. Sowada plan to participate. The Board moved the June meeting from 

June 7 to June 6 to allow Ms. Richardson to participate in the AHA Regional Meeting. Ms. 

Richardson will present her annual report to the County Commissioners in June and talk about the 

community benefit we provide, as well as reconcile the maintenance funds we receive and are so 

grateful for. Dr. Sowada said the support of the County Commissioners has been valuable. She 

said our community family is in it together. Commissioner Slaughter said he has been learning a 

lot since becoming the Hospital Liaison. He said it is great to show the effort the Hospital and 

Foundation are making and the open communication to give the public the opportunity to see all 

that is going on. He said it is nice to have the relationship to be able to call and talk and have open 

dialogue and said that benefits all of us.  

 

  

6/160



 

 

Minutes of the May 3, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Quality Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet. 

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Ms. Pendleton said the Committee did not meet. 

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said Mr. Tardoni’s report, financial narrative and statements are in the meeting packet. 

 

Capital Expenditure Request: Mr. Kelsey presented two capital expenditure requests. The motion 

to approve Capital Expenditure Request FY23-39 for budgeted servers to the low-bid by 

CompuNet for $78,464.22 as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. 

Motion carried. The motion to approve Capital Expenditure Request FY23-48 for a budgeted 

Siemens C-Arm for $184,189 as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. 

Mr. Kelsey said the Hospital signed an agreement with Siemens so there was no bid. Motion 

carried.  

 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $1,127,654.68 as presented was 

made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

I.S. Report: Mr. Kelsey said the report is in the meeting packet. 

 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the information is in the meeting packet. 

 

Foundation 

 

Ms. Richardson reported the Foundation Board met the prior week. She said there was a lovely 

ribbon cutting for the new donor wall and said Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Executive 

Director, did an excellent job with the project and event. Ms. Richardson recognized the 

Foundation Board for all of their work and support. Ms. Richardson announced the Foundation 

Board will host a Casino Night at WWCC August 26. The Foundation Board continues to work 

on their strategic plan. 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Ms. Pendleton said the information is in the meeting packet. 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet.  

7/160



 

 

Minutes of the May 3, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said there is nothing to report. 

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said there is nothing to report.  

 

Dr. Sowada said being on a committee does take a substantial amount of time. It is a commitment 

to the Hospital and our community. She said she appreciates all the Trustees for all they do. She 

said their teamwork is appreciated. 

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Ms. Richardson credited Ms. Leslie Taylor, Clinics Director, for all of her work on the QLER 

agreement. She said it will be very beneficial to our patients. The motion to approve the agreement 

as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

EDUCATION 

 

Dr. Sowada said there were no assignments made for review and discussion this month.  

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts shared a personal experience of being a patient. She said Ms. Richardson has brought 

Planetree into our hospital and Dr. Crofts said she does see value in it. She learned the value as a 

patient in something as simple as introducing yourself. It makes the difference between a good 

experience and an excellent, exceptional experience. She said it is important what Ms. Richardson 

has done here to change our culture. Dr. Crofts commended the on-call team. She said they are 

people who help take care of our patients. She said she appreciates us looking for a psychiatrist 

and agrees we need to take the lead in the community-wide effort to improve access to mental 

health services. The next General Medical Staff meeting is on May 4 with a Star Wars theme.  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Ms. Pendleton shared a patient experience story involving the Walk-In Clinic and said it was 

efficient with nice service. She said it is wonderful to have that option.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. 

Motion carried.  

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 5:44 p.m., the motion to leave executive session and return to regular session was made by Ms. 

Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

8/160



 

 

Minutes of the May 3, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve the list of clinical privileges and granting appointments to the Medical Staff 

as reviewed in executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion 

carried. 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical 

Privileges and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from April 17, 2023 

1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Emily Sanchez, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Christine Raps, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Katharine Clapham, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

2. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. David Crockett, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Mark Stowers, OB/GYN 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff 

 Dr. Jeffery Wheeler, OB/GYN 

4. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Rahul Pawar, Nephrology 

 Dr. Joshua Binks, Radiation Oncology 

5. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Donald Nicell, Tele Radiology (Vrad) 

 Dr. Stephanie Lyden, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Jana Wold, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

6. Reappointment to Non-Physician Provider Staff (2 years) 

 Deseriee Padilla, AGNP-C – Nurse Practitioner 

 Thomas Bibber, Clinical Social Work (SWCS) 

 

The motion to approve the provider contracts presented by the CEO and authorize the CEO to sign 

the contracts as discussed in executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:45 p.m.   

      

    

  ______________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

9/160



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

May 11, 2023 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special workshop 

meeting via Zoom on May 11, 2023, at 3:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online at the call to order: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Geoff 

Phillips, Legal Counsel; and Mr. Robb Slaughter, County Commissioner Liaison. 

 

FINANCE WORKSHOP 

 

Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, reviewed information in a PowerPoint available to the 

Trustees in the board portal. Ms. Love thanked her team for all their hard work in preparing the 

budget. She said we have prepared a conservative plan and have not built anything in for Critical 

Access Hospital status but can add in at a later date. Dr. Sowada and Ms. Richardson thanked Ms. 

Love and her team.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 4:37 p.m.  

 

 

       

        ___________________________________ 

             Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 
 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

 

10/160



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: June 6, 2023 
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 

Workplace Violence Prevention Policy  

 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ___X__ Revision 
 ______ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 

Administration, Board Legal Counsel and MHSC In-House Legal Counsel have spent 
many months and have worked diligently to create this policy.  Extensive research, 
consultation with other hospitals and adherence to Joint Commission standards have 
helped us create an excellent policy.    
 
Board Committee Action: 

Due to the detail and time that has been spent on this policy, and the fact that The Joint 
Commission is scheduled to be here soon, Irene Richardson, CEO, recommends that the 
Board of Trustees take action on this policy at the June 6, 2023 Board of Trustees 
meeting.    
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     _______ For Review Only 
 ____X__ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ___X___ In House Comments: 
 ___X___ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
 
Irene Richardson recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Workplace 
Violence Prevention Policy.  

11/160



EMPLOYEE POLICIES - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at Page 1 of 4 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12575336/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

 Document  Employee  

 Area  Policies  

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - 

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY  

 

PURPOSE  

DRAFT 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County ("MHSC" or the "Hospital")  is committed to providing a safe, 

violence-free workplace for our employees.  MHSC has a zero tolerance policy for violence, threats, 

intimidation, bullying, or any other acts of aggression or violence. This policy also applies to MHSC off--campus 

sponsored functions and events. 

      

  

  

12/160



EMPLOYEE POLICIES - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at Page 2 of 4 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12575336/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

DEFINITIONS  
Workplace Violence: Any threatening or aggressive behavior or verbal abuse that occurs in the work setting. This 

includes but is not limited to assault, battery, beatings, stabbing, suicide, shootings, rapes, near-suicides, 

psychological traumas, threats or obscene phone calls, being followed, sworn or shouted at, intimidation or 

harassment of any nature.  

Workplace Violence Prevention Team: Members selected to assist with the Workplace Violence  

Prevention Program including, but not limited to: employees from Clinical Leadership, Senior Leadership, 

Security, Facilities, Human Resources, Employee Health and front-line staff.  

Zero Tolerance: Violence of any kind as defined above will not be tolerated in the workplace. Any occurrence will 

be taken seriously and responded to according to the following procedures:  

POLICY  
I. Consistent with MHSC's Mission, Vision and Values, this Policy establishes the parameters of the 

Workplace Violence Prevention Program.  

A. The MHSC Workplace Violence Prevention Program is made up of several components 

which include:  

 

1. Workplace Violence Prevention Plan  

2. Workplace Violence Prevention Team and  

3. Workplace Violence Prevention Policy (this document). 

  

B. MHSC is committed to the physical safety and emotional well-being of its  

employees, patients, families, contractors, vendors, customers, visitors and others who 

interact with its employees. 

 

C. MHSC takes a zero-tolerance position to violence in the workplace. Jokes or offensive 

comments regarding violent acts will be taken seriously and will not be tolerated. 

 

D. The Hospital Human Resources Director and Workplace Violence Team is responsible and 

has authority for the comprehensive plan for prevention of workplace violence. 

 

E. Hospital leadership supports zero tolerance of workplace violence through a system of 

accountability for involved managers and employees.  

 

1. Any employee found in violation of this policy may be subject to disciplinary 

action up to and including termination of employment.  

2. Violations will be addressed by human resources, management, administration 

and/or security.  

II. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES  

A. Notify Security of any potentially threatening, aggressive or violent situations. Security 

personnel are authorized to respond and assist where necessary to deescalate situations 

that are a threat to the safety of patients, staff, or visitors.  Security personnel shall contact 

13/160



EMPLOYEE POLICIES - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at Page 3 of 4 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12575336/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

law enforcement for assistance when Security personnel believe it is appropriate and 

necessary.    

B. Immediately report to their supervisor, Administration or Human Resources any direct or 

indirect threats, or any behavior that is intimidating, violent or potentially violent, or 

otherwise in violation of this policy, and complete an occurrence report within the 

Hospital's occurrence reporting system as soon as possible after the event.  

C. If the incident involves a patient's behavior towards an employee, the attending  

physician will be notified.  

D. In cases of domestic violence involving the employee, the employee may report this to their 

supervisor and/or Human Resources so security options for the employee can be provided.  

E. Understand and comply with the workplace violence prevention program and other safety 

and security measures:  

A. Depending on the severity of the situation, call 9-911.  

B. If a weapon is involved, follow procedures for Code Silver.  

C. Specific procedures for a physically aggressive patient are followed per Security 

procedures (or policy).  

III. HOSPITAL RESPONSIBILITIES  

A. Require Staff with primary roles and responsibilities involving Behavioral Health, Security 

and Emergency Services to attend de-escalation training.  

B. Develop a comprehensive plan for prevention of workplace violence, under the direction of 
the Human Resources Director and the Workplace Safety Team.  

C. Disseminate a clear policy of zero tolerance for workplace violence in the orientation  

period and ongoing staff education.  

D. Disseminate a clear policy of zero tolerance for violence. State clearly to patients, families 

and employees that any threatening or aggressive behavior or violence will not be tolerated 

or permitted. Staff should review the zero-tolerance policy with patients and or families as 

needed.  

E. Ensure there are no reprisals against employees who report occurrences, and keep 

information confidential, as appropriate.  

F. Educate employees to promptly report incidents and suggest ways to reduce or eliminate 

risks.  

G. Implement post violent incident procedures of employee support, debriefing, medical care 

for victims, referrals for care and reporting and filing claims, as appropriate. H.  Ensure that 

environmental controls including the following are in place:  

 

A. Alarm systems and other security devices  

B. Closed circuit video recording for high risk areas  

C. Door locking security systems  

H. Provide training and education to staff regarding workplace violence prevention:  

A. Response to alarms and pages  

B. Causes and early recognition of escalating violent behavior  

14/160



EMPLOYEE POLICIES - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at Page 4 of 4 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12575336/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

C. Diffusion of volatile situations  

D. Multi-cultural sensitivity  

E. Methods for dealing with distraught patients, family members or friends of  

patients.  

F. Location and operation of safety devices.  

G. How to call security and police department.  

H. Review of the Workplace Violence Prevention policy.  

I. Implement a record keeping/tracking system for violent incidents through:  

A. Monitoring of workplace violence will be done through the Workplace Violence 

Prevention Team including monitoring of the OSHA log, security reports and 

incident reports to determine overall effectiveness of workplace violence 

prevention team and to identify deficiencies or changes that should be made.  

B. Maintenance of recording and tracking of all training programs.  

C. Evaluation of events after the event to determine action steps to be taken to 

prevent further occurrences.  

 

D. Identifying trends which will be responded to by the Workplace Violence  

Prevention Team.  

Approved: Board  
Approval Signatures  

Step Description  Approver  Date  

15/160



EMPLOYEE POLICIES - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at Page 1 of 7 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12575336/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

 Document  Employee  

 Area  Policies  

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - 

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY  

 

      

  

  

16/160



EMPLOYEE POLICIES - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at Page 2 of 7 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12575336/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

PURPOSE  

Dcampus sponsored functions and events. 

RAFT 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County ("MHSC" or the "Hospital")  is committed to providing a safe, 

violence-free workplace for our employees.  MHSC has a zero tolerance policy for violence, threats, 

intimidation, bullying, or any other acts of aggression or violence. This policy also applies to MHSC off--campus 

sponsored functions and events. 

MHSC prohibits the possession of "dangerous or deadly weapons" by employees on Hospital property at all 

times, including Hospital parking lots and Hospital vehicles. A "dangerous or deadly weapon" is one that is 

likely to may cause death or great bodily harm. (delete underlined language replace with highlighted language)  

However, Hospital security officers, who have been properly trained and certified to carry and use/ discharge a 

Taser, may carry a Taser while on duty.  Hospital employees may need or be required to use and/or possess a 

17/160



EMPLOYEE POLICIES - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at Page 3 of 7 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12575336/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

"weapon" as defined above, as part of their job duties and responsibilities.  (delete underlined language and 

insert highlighted language)  

The Hospital reserves the right to inspect all belongings of employees on its premises., including briefcases, 

purses and handbags, gym bags, and personal vehicles on Hospital property.(delete underlined language)  

DEFINITIONS  
Workplace Violence: Any threatening or aggressive behavior or verbal abuse that occurs in the work setting. This 

includes but is not limited to assault, battery, beatings, stabbing, suicide, shootings, rapes, near-suicides, 

psychological traumas, threats or obscene phone calls, being followed, sworn or shouted at, intimidation or 

harassment of any nature.  

Workplace Violence Prevention Team: Members selected to assist with the Workplace Violence  

Prevention Program including, but not limited to: employees from Clinical Leadership, Senior Leadership, 

Security, Facilities, Human Resources, Employee Health and front-line staff.  

Zero Tolerance: Violence of any kind as defined above will not be tolerated in the workplace. Any occurrence will 

be taken seriously and responded to according to the following procedures:  

POLICY  
I. Consistent with MHSC's Mission, Vision and Values, this Policy establishes the parameters of the 

Workplace Violence Prevention Program.  

A. The MHSC Workplace Violence Prevention Program is made up of several components 

which include  

1. Workplace Violence Prevention Plan  

2. Workplace Violence Prevention Team and  

3. Workplace Violence Prevention Policy (this document).  

B. MHSC is committed to the physical safety and emotional well-being of its  

employees, patients, families, contractors, vendors, customers, visitors and others who 

interact with its employees.  

C. MHSC takes a zero-tolerance position to violence in the workplace. Jokes or offensive 

comments regarding violent acts will be taken seriously and will not be tolerated.  

18/160



EMPLOYEE POLICIES - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at Page 4 of 7 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12575336/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

DRAFTD. 

The Hospital Human Resources Director and Workplace Violence Prevention Team is  

responsible and has authority for the comprehensive plan for prevention of workplace 

violence.  

E. Hospital leadership supports zero tolerance of workplace violence through a system of 

accountability for involved managers and employees.  

1. Any employee found in violation of this policy may be subject to disciplinary 

action up to and including termination of employment.  

2. Violations will be addressed by human resources, management, administration 

and/or security.  

II. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES  

A. Notify Security of any potentially threatening, aggressive or violent situations. Security 

personnel are authorized to respond and assist where necessary to deescalate situations 

that are a threat to the safety of patients, staff, or visitors. Security personnel are shall 

authorized to contact law enforcement for assistance aswhen Security personnel believes 

it is appropriate and necessary.  

B. Immediately report to their supervisor, Administration or Human Resources any direct or 

indirect threats, or any behavior that is intimidating, violent or potentially violent, or 

otherwise in violation of this policy, and complete an occurrence report within the 

Hospital's occurrence reporting system as soon as possible after the event.  

C. If the incident involves a patient's behavior towards an employee, the attending  

physician will be notified.  

D. In cases of domestic violence involving the employee, the employee may report this to their 

supervisor and/or Human Resources so security options for the employee can be provided.  

E. Understand and comply with the workplace violence prevention program and other safety 

and security measures:  

A. Depending on the severity of the situation, call 9-911.  

B. If a weapon is involved, follow procedures for Code Silver.  

19/160



EMPLOYEE POLICIES - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at Page 5 of 7 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12575336/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

C. Specific procedures for a physically aggressive patient are followed per Security 

procedures (or policy).  

III. HOSPITAL RESPONSIBILITIES  

A. Require Staff with primary roles and responsibilities involving Behavioral Health, Security 

and Emergency Services to attend de-escalation training.  

B. Develop a comprehensive plan for prevention of workplace violence, under the direction of 

the Human Resources Director and the Workplace Safety Team. 

DRA

FTC. Disseminate a clear policy of zero tolerance for 

workplace violence in the orientation  

period and ongoing staff education.  

D. Disseminate a clear policy of zero tolerance for violence and that no weapons are allowed on Hospital 

property to visitors and patients. State clearly to patients, families and employees that any 

threatening or aggressive behavior or violence will  

not be tolerated or permitted. Staff should review the zero-tolerance policy with patients 

and or families as needed.  

E. Ensure there are no reprisals against employees who report occurrences, and keep information 

confidential, as appropriate.  

F. Educate employees to promptly report incidents and suggest ways to reduce or eliminate risks.  

Formatted: Highlight

20/160



EMPLOYEE POLICIES - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at Page 6 of 7 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12575336/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

G. Implement post violent incident procedures of employee support, debriefing, medical care for victims, 

referrals for care and reporting and filing claims, as appropriate. H.  Ensure that environmental 

controls including the following are in place:  

A. Alarm systems and other security devices  

B. Closed circuit video recording for high risk areas  

C. Door locking security systems  

I. Provide training and education to staff regarding workplace violence prevention:  

A. Response to alarms and pages  

B. Causes and early recognition of escalating violent behavior  

C. Diffusion of volatile situations  

D. Multi-cultural sensitivity  

E. Methods for dealing with distraught patients, family members or friends of  

patients.  

F. Location and operation of safety devices.  

G. How to call security and police department.  

H. Review of the Workplace Violence Prevention policy.  

J. Implement a record keeping/tracking system for violent incidents through:  

A. Monitoring of workplace violence will be done through the Workplace Violence 

Prevention Team including monitoring of the OSHA log, security reports and 

incident reports to determine overall effectiveness of workplace violence 

prevention team and to identify deficiencies or changes that should be made.  

B. Maintenance of recording and tracking of all training programs.  

C. Evaluation of events after the event to determine action steps to be taken to 

prevent further occurrences.  

D. Identifying trends which will be responded to by the Workplace Violence  

Prevention Team.  

21/160



EMPLOYEE POLICIES - WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY. Retrieved 01/2023. Official copy at Page 7 of 7 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12575336/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

DRAFT
Approved: Board  
Approval Signatures  

Step Description  Approver  Date  

22/160



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: June 6, 2023 
 
Topic for New Business Items: 

CEO Evaluation  
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ___X__Revision 
 ___  __New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 

The Governance Committee of the Board reviewed the CEO Evaluation Policy and 
revised it to stay current with industry standards.     
 
Board Committee Action: 

This policy was presented to the Board of Trustees at their May 3, 2023 meeting 
for review.  Irene Richardson, CEO, is requesting the Board of Trustees that they 
approve this policy at their June 6, 2023 meeting.   

Policy or Other Document: 

     ______  For Review Only 
 ___X__ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ______  In House Comments:  N/A 
 ______  Board  Comments:  N/A 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: Irene Richardson, CEO, recommends 
approval of the CEO Evaluation Policy.  

23/160



DRAFT

Sttus Draft PyStt ID 13570725

Arv N/A

Rvw Du N/A

Dut
Ar

Br 
Trusts

BOT - CEO Evaluation Policy

Board of Trustees

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE:

TEXT:
I. CEO Evut

A. It s t uty  t Br  Trusts (Br) t uy vut t rr
 t C Exutv Or (CEO).

B. T urs  t CEO vut s t rv ty, r,  us 
t t CEO ut w w s/ s

1. Prr  t y rr rs t s st rt y t
Br  Trusts  v t Hst’s strt tvs;

2. M t st   r sstt wt ts ss, vs, 
vus; 

3. Cut usss   wt y t usss
rts  rss ts.

II. Procedure:

A. T CEO s  vut uy, t t st t  Hst’s s yr. T
vut s  s  rtr uy sts y t Br1  t CEO.

T urs  t C Exutv Or (CEO) Prr Evut Py s t rv 
ut rss r t Br t w r vut t CEO’s rr, rv /r
wt .

BOT - CEO Evaluation Policy. Retrieved 05/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13570725/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 2

24/160



DRAFT

Arv Sturs

Step Description Approver Date

B. T rtr us t vut t CEO s  s   vrty  trs tt
surt t st’s ss, vs, vus,  strt s.

C. Prr y  vut us t Ar Hst Asst’s (AHA)
CEO Assessment r tt s  ustz t t t Hst’s s, r us
 ty trvw rss wr t rs  t Br’s Ctts rv
, s w s st t CEO’s rstv.

D. Rrss  t us, t CEO s  vut us rtr sts y
t Br  r t y t CEO.

E. Prur r us t Ar Hst Asst’s CEO Assessment r.

1. Mr; t r  t Exutv Ovrst & Cst (EO&C)
tt s tt t AHA t v r ustz t t Hst’s
s  v ustz r st t  Br rs.

2. Ar; Br rs s rtur t rs t AHA, w w
 rsss t  sury rrt tt rvs  vr
rr rt   r   sury  ts  y
Br rs  t CEO.

3. My; t EO&C Ctt s rvw t rsuts wt t CEO  s
s rvw t CEO’s rs s r t  yr, sur
utuy rt  tt.

4. Ju; t Br r s , r Br rv,   rrt  t
CEO’s rr vut  s r t u s yr.

F. Prur r us t ty trvw rss.

1. E t, Ctt rs, s w s Ctt rs, y
rv  rr t CEO’s rr s t rts t tt
tt’s wr rr t Hst’s ss, vs,  s, s
w s st t CEO’s rstv.

2. Ju; t Br r s , r Br rv,   rrt  t
CEO’s rr vut  s r t u s yr.

Footnote:

Board of Trustees Approval:

1Crtr s r y t Br’s Exutv Cst & Ovrst Ctt  rv
y t Br

BOT - CEO Evaluation Policy. Retrieved 05/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13570725/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 2

25/160



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ______ Revision 
 ______ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 

 

  
 
Board Committee Action: 
 
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     _______ For Review Only 
 _______ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 _______ In House Comments: 
 _______ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 

06/06/2023

Employee Policies - Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment 

X

X

X

Due pass recommendation

26/160



27/160



28/160



29/160



30/160



31/160



32/160



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: June 6, 2023 
 
Topic for New Business Items: 

Success/Talent Management Plan  
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ___X__Revision 
 ___  __New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 

The Success/Talent Management Plan was revised to update the policy and to 
include additional language regarding talent management and mentoring.     
 
Board Committee Action: 

This policy was discussed and revised in the Governance Committee.  The 
committee did their diligence in ensuring that this is a sound and good policy.   

Policy or Other Document: 

     ___X__ For Review Only 
 _____ _ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ______  In House Comments:  N/A 
 ______  Board  Comments:  N/A 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation:  Irene Richardson, CEO, recommends that 
the Board review the Success/Talent Management Plan as this is the first read of 
the policy.  

33/160



DRAFT

S Draft PS ID 13764584

A N/A

R D N/A

D
A

A

Susson/ Tlnt Mnmnt Pln - Snor Lrsp
Pln

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

DEFINITIONS

TEXT
I. TEMPORARY ABSENCE

A. Tmporry, Unplnn Asn: Sort-Trm

1. A             
  (-)        S
L   . A      
,      ,    , 
 .

2. I         CEO,  A  C
(AOC)     B P    

L         M H  S C (MHSC).
C  S L        . T
     MHSC   S L     
     ,   -. MHSC      
                
 .

Atn – S      S L

Intrm – F     S L         
    

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 5

34/160



DRAFT

. A     ,  P     
   B  T (B)    
          B 
. T B    A CEO.

3. I         S L,  CEO 
         
        CEO  ,

B. Tmporry, Unplnn Asn: Lon-Trm

1. A -           
  (-). T     
        -   
.

2. I     CEO,  B  T   
,     I CEO,   
       S L. T  
          I CEO 
          (3) .
F,              I
CEO     S L.

II. INTERIM POSITIONS

A. Intrm Poston Assnmnt

1. T           
     /    
 S L .

CEO CNO, CFO, CCO

CFO A   CEO

CNO A   CEO

CCO A   CEO

CMO A   CEO

2. T   I        
    .

B. Tlnt Mnmnt n Mntorn

1. T CEO  S L     
         
   :

P: I:

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 5

35/160



DRAFT

. C,   .

. P  : ,   
.

. C   .

. H    .

. V   .

. I,   

. P   ,   
  .

. E . L  .

. C,          

. I . P    -
   .

C. Autorty n Compnston o t Intrm CEO

1. T       CEO . T 
  I/A CEO       
       CEO.

2. T    I/A CEO     
E O  C C    
B.

D. Autorty n Compnston o t Intrm Snor Lr

1. T       S L
. T    I/A S L  
          
 S L.

2. T    /A S L     
CEO.

E. Bor Ovrst

1. T B ()        I/
A CEO      E O  C
C   B.

2. T E O  C C   
       IA CEO   
 .

F. Communtons Pln

1. I     ,    
   I/A CEO,  B P  
 F B ,  ,   
     CEO   U  U H S

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 5

36/160



DRAFT
A S

Step Description Approver Date

    .

2. A      I/A CEO    
 ,  I/A CEO   
        
 .

G. Complton o Sort-Trm Asn

1. T      CEO   MHSC  
   B P      CEO.

2. T          
. A           , 
   B P,        -
 .

III. PERMANENT ABSENCE

A. Prmnnt Dprtur or Plnn Rtrmnt: CEO

1. I  CEO'          ,
 B  T    S C  30  
   .

2. T           
.

3. T B          .
C        
     .

B. Prmnnt Dprtur or Plnn Rtrmnt: Snor Lr

1. I  S L'         
,  CEO       ,  
  .

REFERENCES

Sponsorn Dprtmnt: Bor Govrnn Commtt - Approv D

D  O: M 2015

D  L R: M 2015

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 5

37/160



DRAFT

G K: C E
O

01/2017

H

Drt sv y Quknn, Kr: C Clnl Or  3/9/2018, 5:19PM EST

Drt sr y Quknn, Kr: C Clnl Or  12/26/2018, 3:35PM EST

Drt sv y F, Ron: Clnl Amnstrtv Assstnt  6/5/2023, 2:20PM EDT

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 5

38/160



DRAFT

S Draft PS ID 13764584

A N/A

R D N/A

D
A

A

Susson/ Tlnt Mnmnt Pln - Snor Lrsp Pln

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

DEFINITIONS

TEXT

I. TEMPORARY ABSENCE

A. Tmporry, Unplnn Asn: Sort-Trm

1. A                (-
)        S L   . A   
   ,      ,    ,   .

2. I         CEO,  VP  C SA  C (AOC)
    B CP     . A     ,
 CP         B  T (B)   
           B  . T B
   A CEO.

3. I         S L,  CEO     
              CEO 
,

B. Tmporry, Unplnn Asn: Lon-Trm

1. A -              (-).
T              -   
.

2. I     CEO,  B  DT    , 
   I CEO,           S

L         M H  S C (MHSC). C  S L  

     . T      MHSC   S L 

         ,   -. MHSC          

              .

Atn – S      S L

Intrm – F     S L              

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 4

39/160



DRAFT

L. T             I CEO   
        (3) . F,         
    I CEO     S L.

II. INTERIM POSITIONS

A. Intrm Poston Assnmnt

1. T               
 /      S L .

CEO COO    VP  C S

CFO C

VP N A N D

VP C S CEO

S VP CEO  D  H R

COO S VP   L C

CEO CNO, CFO, CCO

CFO A   CEO

CNO A   CEO

CCO A   CEO

CMO A   CEO

2. T   I            
:.

B. Tlnt Mnmnt n Mntorn

1. T CEO  S L        
          :

. C,   .

. P  : ,    .

. C   .

. H    .

. V   .

. I,   

. P   ,     
.

. E . L  .

. C,          

. I . P    -    .

C. Autorty n Compnston o t Intrm CEO

1. T       CEO . T    I/A
CEO               CEO.

2. T    I/A CEO      E O 
C C     B.

D. Autorty n Compnston o t Intrm Snor Lr

1. T       S L . T   
I/A S L            

P: I:

P: I:

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 4

40/160



DRAFT
A S

Step Description Approver Date

H

  S L.

2. T    /A S L      CEO.

E. Bor Ovrst

1. T B ()        I/A CEO   
  E O  C C   B.

2. T E O  C C         
 IIA CEO     .

F. Communtons Pln

1. I     ,       
I/A CEO,  B C (  P    F B
)    F B ,  ,     
   CEO   U  U H S     .

2. A      I/A CEO      ,  B
   I/A CEO        
     .

G. Complton o Sort-Trm AsnAsn

1. T      CEO   MHSC      B
CP      CEO.

2. T           . A    
      ,     B CP,     
  - .

III. PERMANENT ABSENCE

A. Prmnnt Dprtur or Plnn Rtrmnt: CEO

1. I  CEO'          ,  B  D
T    S C  30      .

2. T            .

3. T B          . C   
          .

B. Prmnnt Dprtur or Plnn Rtrmnt: Snor Lr

1. I  S L'          ,  CEO 
     ,     .

REFERENCES

Sponsorn Dprtmnt: Bor Govrnn Commtt - Approv D

D  O: M 2015

D  L R: M 2015

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 4

41/160



DRAFT

Drt sv y Quknn, Kr: C Clnl Or  3/9/2018, 5:19PM EST

Drt sr y Quknn, Kr: C Clnl Or  12/26/2018, 3:35PM EST

Drt sv y F, Ron: Clnl Amnstrtv Assstnt  6/5/2023, 2:20PM EDT

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 4

42/160



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: June 6, 2023 
 
Topic for New Business Items: 

Pathology Privilege Form 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ______ Revision 
 ___X__New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 

The MHSC Credentials Committee and the Medical Executive Committee have 
reviewed the Pathology Privilege Form and have approved it.   
 
Board Committee Action: 

Irene Richardson is requesting that the Board of Trustees take action on this form 
at their June 6, 2023 meeting.   
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ______  For Review Only 
 ___X__ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ______  In House Comments:  N/A 
 ______  Board  Comments:  N/A 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: Irene Richardson, CEO, recommends 
approval of the Pathology Privilege Form.  

43/160



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 1 

 

Rev: 4/2023 

Delineation of Privileges 

PATHOLOGY PRIVILEGES 

 

 Initial appointment    Reappointment    Modification of Privileges 

Applicant 

Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information deemed adequate by 

the Hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, and other qualifications and for resolving any 

doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges.  

To be eligible to apply for core privileges in pathology (anatomic, clinical), the initial applicant must meet the following criteria: 

LICENSURE / 

PROFESSIONAL 

LIABILITY 

INSURANCE 

MD or DO 

Licensed to practice medicine in the State of Wyoming 

Current Wyoming designated DEA Registration and current Wyoming Controlled Substance Registration 

Professional liability insurance in the amounts of at least: Per Claim: $1,000,000.00 Aggregate: 

$3,000,000.00. 

EDUCATION / 

TRAINING 

Successful completion of an Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME)– or 

American Osteopathic Association (AOA)–accredited residency in clinical and anatomic pathology. 

CERTIFICATION Current certification or active participation in the examination process with achievement of certification 

in clinical and anatomic pathology within the eligibility period established by the American Board of 

Pathology or the American Osteopathic Board of Pathology. 

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(INITIAL) 

Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate provision of pathology services, reflective 

of the scope of privileges requested, for the past 12 months or demonstrate successful completion of an 

ACGME- or AOA-accredited residency, clinical fellowship, or research in a clinical setting within the 

past 12 months. 

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(REAPPOINTMENT) 

To be eligible to renew core privileges in pathology, the applicant must meet the following maintenance 

of privilege criteria: Current demonstrated competence and an adequate volume of experience with 

acceptable results, reflective of the scope of privileges requested, for the past 24 months based on results 

of ongoing professional practice evaluation and outcomes. Evidence of current ability to perform 

privileges requested is required of all applicants for renewal of privileges. 

FPPE FPPE criteria will be assigned by the Department Chair during the approval process. 

OTHER 

REQUIREMENTS 
 Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the 

appropriate equipment, license, beds, staff, and other support required to provide the services 

defined in this document. Site-specific services may be defined in hospital or department policy. 

 This document is focused on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical 

privileges. The applicant must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or 

accreditation requirements that the organization is obligated to meet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44/160



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 2 

 

Rev: 4/2023 

ANATOMIC PATHOLOGY CORE PRIVILEGES - This is not intended to be an all-encompassing procedures list.  It defines 

the types of activities/procedures/ privileges that the majority of practitioners in this specialty perform at this organization and 

inherent activities/ procedures/privileges requiring similar skill sets and techniques.  

Requested CHECK ALL PRIVILEGES/PROCEDURES YOU ARE REQUESTING Approved 

 

 

☐ 

Diagnosis, exclusion, and monitoring of disease by general anatomical pathology examination of tissue 

specimens, cells, body fluids, and clinical laboratory tests on body fluids and secretions, and including 

performance of autopsies. Adhere to medical staff policy regarding emergency and consultative call 

services. [The core privileges include the procedures listed on the attached privilege list and such other 

procedures that are extensions of the same techniques and skills.] 

 

 

☐ 

 Anatomic Pathology  

☐ Surgical Pathology ☐ 

☐ Autopsy Pathology ☐ 

☐ Performance of Needle Aspiration Biopsy ☐ 

☐ Non-gynecologic cytology ☐ 

☐ Gynecologic cytology ☐ 

CLINICAL PATHOLOGY CORE PRIVILEGES - This is not intended to be an all-encompassing procedures list.  It defines the 

types of activities/procedures/ privileges that the majority of practitioners in this specialty perform at this organization and inherent 

activities/ procedures/privileges requiring similar skill sets and techniques.  

Requested CHECK ALL PRIVILEGES/PROCEDURES YOU ARE REQUESTING Approved 

 

 

☐ 

Microbiology, hematology, immunohematology, blood banking and serology, clinical chemistry and 

immunology. Privileges include but are not limited to; interpretation and evaluation of special laboratory 

tests. Adhere to medical staff policy regarding emergency and consultative call services. [The core 

privileges include the procedures listed on the attached privilege list and such other procedures that are 

extensions of the same techniques and skills.] 

 

 

☐ 

 Clinical Pathology  

☐ Transfusion Medicine/Blood Bank ☐ 

☐ Chemical Pathology ☐ 

☐ Medical Microbiology ☐ 

☐ Laboratory Management ☐ 

☐ Molecular Pathology ☐ 

☐ Performance of Bone Marrow Aspirate/Biopsy ☐ 

☐ Interpretation of Bone Marrow Aspirate/Biopsy ☐ 

☐ Hematopathology ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45/160



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 3 

 

Rev: 4/2023 

 

SPECIAL NON-CORE PRIVILEGES  

If desired, noncore privileges are requested individually in addition to requesting the core. Each individual requesting noncore 

privileges must meet the specific threshold criteria governing the exercise of the privilege requested including training, required 

previous experience, and for maintenance of clinical competence.                                                                                                                         

Requested CHECK ALL PRIVILEGES/PROCEDURES YOU ARE REQUESTING Approved 

☐ Bone Marrow Biopsy 

Initial Privileges: Successful completion of an ACGME- or AOA-accredited postgraduate training in 

anatomic or cytopathology that included training in bone marrow biopsy.  

Required previous experience: Demonstrated current competence and evidence of the performance of 

5 bone marrow biopsies in the past 12 months. 

Maintenance of privileges: Demonstrated current competence and evidence of the performance of 5 

bone marrow biopsies in the past 24 months based on results of ongoing professional practice 

evaluation and outcomes. 

 

☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46/160



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 4 

 

Rev: 4/2023 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF APPLICANT 

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated performance I 

am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at Hospital, and I understand that: 

a. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules 

applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 

b. Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation my 

actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents. 

 

Applicant’s Printed Name:      

 

Applicant’s Signature:       Date:      

 

DEPARTMENT CHAIR REVIEW 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation for the above-named applicant and make the 

following recommendations: 

☐ Recommend all privileges as requested 

 

☐ Recommend privileges with conditions/modifications (describe): 

 

 

 

☐ Do not recommend the following requested privileges (rationale for recommendation): 

 

 

 

☐ I assign ________________________________________ to complete the initial FPPE evaluations on this 

Practitioner. 

 

Department Chair’s Printed Name      

 

 

Department Chair’s Signature:       Date:      

 

 

FOR MEDICAL STAFF OFFICE USE ONLY 

Credentials Committee approval Date:    

Medical Executive Committee approval Date:    

Board of Trustees approval Date:    

 

Privileges Effective From: ____________________ To: ____________________ 

 
Date Form Approved by Specialty:   05/02/2023    

Date Form Approved by Department Chair:  5/9/2023       

Date Approved by Credentials Committee:  5/9/2023     

Date Approved by MEC:    5/23/2023    

Date Approved by Board of Trustees:        

47/160



Separator Page

Pathology Privileges Previous Form

48/160



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
 

DELINEATION OF CLINICAL PRIVILEGES 

PATHOLOGY 

 
Name:__________________________________________________________________ 

 

TRAINING 

Board Certification, or the active pursuit of board certification, in the specialty of  

Pathology by the American Board of Pathology, the American Osteopathic Association 

or the equivalent certifying body (as determined by the Credentials Committee) is 

required.   

 

In the absence of board certification, applicant must have completed an approved 

Pathology residency, and must be qualified to pursue and receive board certification 

(board eligible). Board certification must be obtained within seven years from the date of 

completion of residency or fellowship.   

 

PART I.   PRIVILEGES 

 
Requested Approved 

 

________ ________ Anatomical Pathology 

     Surgical Pathology 

     Autopsy Pathology 

     Cytopathology 

 

Requested Approved 

 

________ ________ Clinical Pathology 

     Immunohematology/Blood Bank 

     Clinical Chemistry 

     Clinical Microbiology 

     Clinical Immunology 

     Hematopathology 

 

PART II.   PRIVILEGES 

 
Requested Approved 

 

________ ________ Sternal Bone Marrow Aspirate 

 

________ ________ Fine Needle Aspiration of Palpable Lesions 

 

________ ________ Post Iliac Crest Aspiration and Biopsies 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49/160



PART III.   OTHER PRIVILEGES 

 
Requested Approved 

 

________ ________ ____________________________________________________ 

 

________ ________ ____________________________________________________ 

 

________ ________ ____________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________  ___________________ 

Signature        Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

50/160



May 17th Quality Report 
 
Meeting called to order at 8:15. 
 
A couple of excellent mission moments were reviewed. 
 
Most of the meeting was spent reviewing the fiscal year comparison presented.  The report was 
put together and reviewed to shows the scores of approximately 70 individual elements.  The 
report details state and national averages, target goals, 75th percentile benchmark, LY vs TY and 
the gain or loss in either a percentage or raw number.  The report shows that there has been 
continuous improvement in 47 individual elements, 5 elements were unchanged, while the 
remaining elements are areas for improvement.  Several elements are color coded to show they 
are within 5% of the benchmark.  All in all the report is very easy to follow, very valuable and 
easy to understand.  At this time it is undecided but the report may be generated either 
quarterly or biannually. 
 
Star rating was touched on as was Sepsis and falls.   

51/160



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting Minutes - Draft 
Monday – May 15, 2023 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Present by Zoom: Kandi Pendleton, Barbara Sowada 
Voting Members Present by Zoom: Suzan Campbell, Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson 
Non-Voting Members & Guests Present by Zoom: Ann Marie Clevenger, Tami Love, Kari Quickenden, 
Amy Lucy, Shawn Bazzanella, Ruthann Wolfe, Eddie Boggs, Cindy Nelson 
 
 
Kandi called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. and welcomed everyone.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Barbara, second by Irene. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The March minutes will be included in the June meeting packet for review and approval.    
 
ROUTINE REPORTS 
 

Turnover 
 

Amber provided the 2023 turnover data through the end of April. She said we are at a 21% turnover rate 
which is good compared to the national average of 29-30%. The Committee discussed job abandonment 
numbers as well as the jobs with the highest turnover. The group agreed it would be interesting to see 
the distribution of staff in the different generational groups. Amber said she will bring that information 
to the June meeting. The Committee discussed the timeline for the new hire process.    
 
Contract Staffing 
 
The Committee reviewed the current contract staff report. Amber noted the numbers continue to 
decrease.   
 
Employee Injury & Illness Reporting  
 
Amber said there is nothing to report at this time.  
 

Old Business 

None.  
 
New Business 
 
Employee Policies – Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment 
 
Suzan provided background for why she is suggesting the change to the current policy and referenced 
information in the meeting packet. The motion to approve the policy to forward to the Board of 
Trustees for first read at the June meeting was made by Barbara, second by Suzan. Motion carried. Cindy 

52/160



 

Minutes of the May 15, 2023 Human Resources Committee 
Page 2 

said a new orientation memo template approved by the Board would be needed to include the draft in 
the June meeting packet.   
 
Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting is scheduled Monday, June 19 at 3:00 p.m. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m. 

53/160



54/160



55/160



56/160



57/160



58/160



59/160



60/160



61/160



62/160



63/160



64/160



65/160



66/160



67/160



68/160



69/160



70/160



71/160



72/160



73/160



74/160



75/160



76/160



77/160



78/160



79/160



80/160



81/160



82/160



83/160



84/160



85/160



86/160



87/160



88/160



89/160



90/160



91/160



92/160



93/160



94/160



95/160



96/160



97/160



IS Report April 2023 
By Terry (TJ) Thompson, IS Director 

 

MHSC IS service environment:  
 1158 computer users accounts  
 100 portable device, Cell Phones and iPads  
 790 Desktop systems, Laptops and Desktops  
 562 VoIP Telephony devices  
 164 Servers, 158 being virtual systems. 
 86 Networking Nodes  
 103 Wireless devices  
 18 UPS  

  
 
MHSC IS Service Request closure rates at a 90% baseline: 

 
We dropped down below our 90% baseline, due to employee PTO. 
 
Cerner Service Request closure rates at a 90% baseline: 

 
Cerner continues to inch up to 90%, but there is a huge backlog of SR, where 133 of 159 SR are a month 
old. 

80%

93% 96%
88%

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Monthly IS SR Closure Rate

44%

64%
72% 74%

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Monthly Cerner SR Closure Rate

98/160



MHSC Project Completion, at a 90% closure rate of 80 work stories per month: 

 
We have standardized a project work story, as to note the work initiative within project. 
 
Remediation of CISA Cyber Security findings: 

  
We have remediated 18 of the 31 CISA Cyber Security findings. A 50% improvement upon MHSC internal 
cyber security posture.  We are in the heavy lift areas of security remediation, where it takes greater 
efforts to correct the security issue. 
 
Below is the latest CISA Cyber Hygiene Report Card, which is performed weekly. Scanning MHSC 44 
external public IP addresses for vulnerabilities. Of the 44 public IP addresses we have 8 hosts offering 14 
different external services.  Where 2 of the hosts are vulnerable with 3 different low vulnerabilities. 

 
1. We have reduced our vulnerable host from 8 down to 2. 
2. We have reduced our 8 vulnerabilities down to 3 low vulnerabilities, where these devices will be 

removed during the month of July 2023. 
3. We have significantly improved upon our cyber hygiene report card from 31 vulnerabilities 

down to 3 Low vulnerabilities. 

31% 37%

58%

81%

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Monthly IS Project Completion

31

23

17
13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13

CISA Security Findings Remediation

99/160



 

100/160



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

 

NARRATIVE TO APRIL 2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

THE BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line from operations for April is a loss of 

$1,046,468, compared to a gain of $45,308 in the budget.  This yields a -12.01% 

operating margin for the month compared to .51% in the budget. The year-to-date loss is 

$5,084,167 compared to a loss of $56,860 in the budget.  The year-to-date operating 

margin is -5.58%, compared to -.06% in the budget. 

 

Year-to-date, the total net loss is $4,559,167, compared to a total net loss of $6,130 in the 

budget.  This represents a YTD profit margin of -5.00% compared to -.01% in the budget.  

 

REVENUE.  Revenue decreased from the prior month, coming in at $18,272,396, over 

budget by $176,259. Year to date, revenue remains over budget by $8,306,102. 

 

VOLUME. Inpatient discharges and patient days for April came in under budget. The 

average daily census (ADC) decreased to 10.2, under budget, and average length of stay 

(LOS) dropped to 3.1, right at budget. Births, Emergency Room visits and Surgeries 

came in right at budget and Clinic visits and Outpatient visits came in over budget. 

 

Annual Debt Service Coverage came in at 2.28. Days of Cash on Hand increased two 

days to 91.9 days.  Daily cash expenses increased to $290,800 year to date. We have 

looked at cash projections for June 30 and estimate DCOH to be at 110 days at year end, 

under the goal of 130 days. 

 

REDUCTION OF REVENUE.  Deductions from revenue decreased to the year-to-date 

level, at 53.1%. Total AR decreased with the lower revenue month.  Medicare AR 

remained level, Self-Pay AR increased and all other payer AR decreased in April. 

Deductions of Revenue are 52.7% year-to-date, compared to the budget of 51.5%.  Total 

collections for the month came in higher in April at $9,236,350.  

 

Net days in AR decreased to 59.30 days.  We are on track to meet our goal of 51 days by 

the end of the fiscal year.   

 

EXPENSES.  Total expenses decreased in April to $9,760,801, over budget by $854,186.  

Year-to-date, expenses are over budget by $6,241,757.  The following line items were 

over budget in April: 

 

 

Salary and Wage – April was over budget. We continue to have double coverage 

for nursing as the new hires are oriented.  In the last several weeks, we have 

interviewed and made offers on several open nursing positions.  We are hopeful 

these positions will be filled which will decrease our contract labor after 

completion of the orientation periods. 

101/160



 

Contract Labor – This expense is over budget in April and year to date.  Staffing 

shortages continue in some clinical areas with contract labor staff currently being 

used in Med/Surg, ICU, Labor & Delivery, Surgery, Emergency Room, 

Laboratory, Respiratory, and Behavioral Health.  Year-to-date contract FTEs 

remained at 19.5 in April.  

 

Purchased Services – Department Management fees, legal fees, bank card fees, 

physicist fees, and IT services were included in budget variances in April. 

 

Supplies - Supply costs continue to be impacted by inflation and supply chain 

issues.  Most supplies were under budget in April with the lower volumes.  Drug 

expenses decreased from the prior month but were still over budget in April.  

Maintenance supplies were over budget with the replacement of HEPA filters 

house wide in April. 

 

Utilities – Fuel expense continues to come in over budget.  Natural gas expenses 

are 68% over budget year to date. 

 

Leases and Rentals – With the end of the current MRI lease, lease expense is 

posted to equipment lease expense instead of amortization.  The new renewal 

lease, at a lower monthly rate, will move it back to amortization expense.   

 

Depreciation & Amortization – This expense is over budget with the reclass of 

operating leases to assets with the new GASB 87 rule and is expected to remain 

over budget through the end of the fiscal year. 

 

 

PROVIDER CLINIC.   Revenue for the Clinics also came in lower than March, at 

$2,139,602, over budget by $44,104 and over budget year to date by $2,328,550.  The 

bottom line for the Clinics in April is a loss of $482,656 compared to a loss of $478,277 

in the budget.  The year-to-date loss is $3,557,714, compared to a budgeted loss of 

$4,040,371. Clinic volumes were lower in April, at 5,633 visits. Total Clinic expenses for 

the month are $1,732,794, over budget by $51,248. Salary & Wage and Benefits are over 

budget for April. 

 

OUTLOOK FOR MAY.  Gross patient revenue for May is projecting higher again, over 

$21 million.  Inpatient volumes have increased during the month. LOS has increased to 

3.2 and the average daily census is currently at 15.8.  Surgeries, Clinic visits, Emergency 

room visits and most Outpatient departments are projecting higher than budget.  Births 

are currently coming under budget.  

  

Collections are projecting to $9.3 million as we start to collect from March’s high 

revenue.  Deductions of revenue are expected to remain stable with the high revenue 

month.  Expenses are expected to remain the same, over budget with the increased cost of 

102/160



supplies and continued contract labor.  With higher revenues and expenses, a slight loss 

in May is expected. 

 

FY2024 Budget.  The FY2024 Operating and Capital budget was presented at a special 

Budget Workshop earlier in May.  The final budget is expected to be presented to the 

Board of Trustees for approval at their June meeting.  We presented our County budget 

requests to the County Commissioners on May 16. 

 

Critical Access.  We have had several meetings with State representatives, our auditors 

and our cost report preparer.  Our internal team has met weekly to work through 

questions in each area including finance, clinical, quality and providers. We have also 

reached out to other Critical Access hospitals across the State to set up meetings to ask 

specific process questions.  We are working with Cerner on changes needed for CAH 

billing. We are hoping to have the initial application completed by the first week of June 

with the estimated timeline of 6 months for approval. 

 

Financial Goals.  We have chosen two financial metrics to focus on for the current fiscal 

year: Days Cash on Hand and Days in Accounts Receivable.  In addition to these main 

goals, we have set goals for some corresponding financial metrics that are impacting the 

revenue cycle:   

 

 DNFB Days – Discharged Not Final Billed Days   

 Total Accounts Receivable aging 

 Days in AR by Payer  

 

The graphs with goals and actuals are included in the monthly financial packet each 

month.  The Revenue Cycle Action Team (RCAT) has put together a plan for reaching 

the goals for cash on hand, days in AR and DNFB.  

 

 

 

 

103/160



104/160



105/160



106/160



107/160



108/160



109/160



110/160



111/160



112/160



113/160



114/160



115/160



116/160



117/160



118/160



119/160



120/160



121/160



122/160



123/160



124/160



125/160



126/160



127/160



128/160



129/160



130/160



131/160



132/160



133/160



134/160



135/160



136/160



137/160



138/160



139/160



140/160



141/160



142/160



143/160



Vouchers Submitted by MHSC at agreed discounted rate

July 2022 $0.00
August 2022 $168,183.03
September 2022 $0.00
October 2022 $63,176.34
November 2022 $0.00
December 2022 $53,248.26
January 2023 $23,945.08
February 2023 $0.00
March 2023 $39,823.24
April 2023 $0.00
May 2023 $0.00
June 2023 $0.00

County Requested Total Vouchers Submitted $348,375.95

Total Vouchers Submitted FY 23 $348,375.95

Less:  Total Approved by County and Received by MHSC FY 23 $308,552.71

Total Vouchers Pending Approval by County $39,823.24

FY23 Title 25 Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $471,488.00

Funds Received From Sweetwater County $308,552.71

 FY23 Title 25 Fund Budget Remaining $162,935.29

Total Budgeted Vouchers Pending Submittal to County $0.00

FY23 Maintenance Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $1,448,215.00

County Maintenance FY23 - July $258,289.40
County Maintenance FY23 - August $42,947.22
County Maintenance FY23 - September $114,358.00
County Maintenance FY23 - October $20,740.60
County Maintenance FY23 - November $47,844.61
County Maintenance FY23 - December $27,523.75
County Maintenance FY23 - January $41,393.31
County Maintenance FY23 - February $65,606.04
County Maintenance FY23 - March $266,680.40
County Maintenance FY23 - April $562,831.67
County Maintenance FY23 - May $0.00
County Maintenance FY23 - June $0.00

$1,448,215.00

 FY23 Maintenance Fund Budget Remaining $0.00

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
County Voucher Summary

as of month ending April 30, 2023

144/160



145/160



Financial Goals – Fiscal Year 2023.  We have chosen two financial metrics to focus on for the current 

fiscal year: Days Cash on Hand (DCOH) and Days in Accounts Receivable (AR).  We have included the 

historical average of 18 months prior to Cerner implementation for reference. 

 Days Cash on Hand represents the number of days the hospital can operate without cash 

receipts utilizing all sources of cash available.  We have set a short-term goal of 100 days 

by December 31 and long-term goals of 115 days by March 31 and 130 days by June 30, 

the end of the fiscal year. 
 

o We saw an increase in DCOH of 2 days in April and did not meet the goal in 

April.  Cash collections did increase in April to $9.2 million.  Daily cash expense 

increased slightly to $290,826 year to date. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

179

85.05 78.44 

99.11 102.62 103.43 99.41 
90.30 91.85 

85.00 85 89 
100 105 110 115 120 125 130 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Days Cash on Hand

Days Cash on Hand DCOH Goal

146/160



 Days in Accounts Receivable represents the number of days of patient charges tied up in 

unpaid patient accounts.  We have set a short-term goal of 70 days by December 31, 60 

days by March 31 and 51 days by year end. 

 

o We use a 3-month average calculation in the financial statements for this metric.  

Days in AR for April decreased to 57.81, coming in right at our goal of 57 days.  

Gross accounts receivable decreased in April with the lower revenue month.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48.7

76.46 
71.42 

63.82 
57.37 58.87 56.33 

59.96 57.81 

80 80 
73 

70 
67 

63 
60 

57 
54 

51 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Historical
Avg September

 October  November  December  January  February  March  April  May  June

Gross Days in AR

Gross Days in AR Days in AR Goal

147/160



Revenue Cycle Goals – Fiscal Year 2023 - In addition to these main goals, we have set goals for some 

corresponding financial metrics that are impacting the revenue cycle: 

 

 DNFB Days – Discharged Not Final Billed days.  These are patient accounts where the 

patient has been discharged but the account has not been sent for billing.  Several 

categories of accounts fall under DNFB including billing holds, corrections required, 

credit balances, waiting for coding, ready to bill and the standard delay.  The standard 

delay, or abeyance period, are accounts held automatically for 5 days before being 

released for billing.  This allows for all charges to be posted, charts documented and 

coding to be completed.  We have set the goal for DNFB days at 5 days by the end of the 

year, equal to our 5-day abeyance period for billing accounts.   

 

o DNFB Days are at 10.4 for April.  We did not meet the goal for April and 

continue to work through issues that delay billing and clean claims, including 

delayed documentation, payer billing edits, coding backlog and waiting on 

charges to be built. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.00 

10.00 10.00 
9.00 

8.00 
7.00 

6.00 
5.00 5.00 

5.06

15.82 

10.06 10.46 10.71 

9.21 
9.94 

10.51 

 -

 2.00

 4.00

 6.00

 8.00

 10.00

 12.00

 14.00

 16.00

 18.00

Historical
Avg

October November December  January  February  March  April  May  June

DNFB Days

Goal Actual

148/160



 Total Accounts Receivable aging – These goals were set based on national 

benchmarks received from CLA and are set as follows:   

 

o Days over 90 days set be < 20% of total AR 

o Days over 120 days set at < 5% of total AR  

o Days over 180 days set at < 3% of total AR 

 

 Also shown is December 31, 2021, as comparison data from pre-Cerner.  Total Days 

in AR decreased in April with the lower revenue month and increased collections.   
 

 

o Days over 90 days increased to 25% for April 

 

 

o Days over 120 days increased to 24% for April 

 

22%

30%
33%

29% 29% 28% 27%
24% 25%

20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

December
2021

 September  October  November  December  January  February  March  April

Total AR Aging > 90 Days

Over 90 days - < 20% Goal < 20%

22%

30%
33%

29% 29% 28% 27%
24% 25%

20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

December
2021

 September  October  November  December  January  February  March  April

Total AR Aging > 90 Days

Over 90 days - < 20% Goal < 20%

149/160



 

 

o Days over 180 days stayed at 12% for April 
 

 

 Days in AR by Payer – These metrics show more detail of where our aging AR is 

allocated.  These goals have always been reported in the monthly financial 

statements, but we will be showing the trends through the end of the fiscal year.  We 

have met the aging goals for Blue Cross, Medicare and Medicaid and are seeing slow 

progress in Commercial payer aging.  These goals are as follows:   

 

o BCBS Days in AR > 90 days less than 10% 

o Insurance Days in AR > 90 days less than 15% 

o Medicaid Days in AR > 90 days less than 20% 

o Medicare Days in AR > 60 days less than 6% 
 

 

10%

8%

13%
14%

15%

13% 13%
12% 12%

3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

December
2021

 September  October  November  December  January  February  March  April

Total AR Aging > 180 Days

Over 180 days - < 3% Goal < 3%

4.99%

11.67%

7.99%

3.58%
4.87% 5.14%

7.29%

4.54% 4.46%

0.00%
2.00%
4.00%
6.00%
8.00%

10.00%
12.00%
14.00%

Blue Cross > 90 days

Percentage of Blue Cross Receivable > 90 Days - < 10% Goal < 10%

150/160



 

    

 

  

15.94%

35.09% 31.75% 33.95% 37.15% 38.13%
29.89% 28.45% 28.31%

0.00%
10.00%
20.00%
30.00%
40.00%
50.00%

Insurance > 90 days

Percentage of Insurance Receivable > 90 Days - < 15% Goal < 15%

18.54%

29.92%
28.95%

21.66%
24.31% 22.87%

19.63%

12.95% 13.50%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

Medicaid > 90 days

Percentage of Medicaid Receivable > 90 Days - <20% Goal < 20%

1.95%

30.30% 31.13%

13.36%
11.29% 12.78%

5.59% 4.55%
6.61%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

Medicare > 60 days

Percentage of Medicare Receivable > 60 Days - <6% Goal < 6%

151/160



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…May Buildings and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  May 30, 2023 
 
Oncology Suite Project…contracts have been fully executed. A. Pleasant Construction is 
beginning to organize the project as needed. A small change order for the door issues was 
discussed. Project should be completed in the first quarter of 2024. 
 
Building Automation System…waiting on warmer weather to proceed with valve work and final 
balancing. 
 
Bulk Oxygen/Landscaping Project…Wylie Construction is working on site. The water line portion 
will be done first…a partial shutdown is needed but the temporary tie-in is in place to the MOB. 
 
Lightning Arrest System…preliminary work has commenced. Project should be completed 
around the last of June. 
 
Medical Imaging Core and X-Ray…design work has commenced. Staff and patient ingress and 
egress to and from the waiting area was discussed. 
 
Laboratory Project…design work is underway. Considerable discussion took place regarding the 
options available to the Hospital regarding design and hiring of contractors. Mr. Wheatley from 
Plan One is leaning to recommending the Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) option. He 
recommended that the Board make a decision at its July meeting. The Committee will discuss 
and make a recommendation at the June Committee meeting. 
 
Foundation Area Project…staff continues to work on options for how to best use the space. 
Staff will present its recommendation at a future Committee meeting. 
 
U o f U MOB Project…Tami Love reported on this project. The Hospital and the U of U will share 
in the cost based on here-to-for agreed upon concepts. The U of U currently occupies the space 
but desires that some renovation be done. This project will go to the May Finance and Audit 
Committee for consideration. 
 
MOB Entrance Project…discussion took place regarding this project which has been approved 
for grant funding with a match required. A decision needs to be made regarding how this 
project fits in with Hospital priorities and the earlier priority rankings developed by staff. More 
discussion at a later meeting. 
 

152/160



Central Scheduling…staff would like to re-purpose some existing storage space for the Central 
Scheduling operations at the Hospital. More discussion at a later meeting. 
 
COVID-19 funding…When asked by Mr. Kelsey, Tami Love reported that her best estimate right 
now is that the Hospital spent roughly $8 Million of COVID-19 related funds on building 
improvements. 
 
For more detailed information, see the minutes for the B & G meeting in the packet. 

153/160



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

May 16, 2023 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on May 16, 2023, 

at 3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

   Mr. Ed Tardoni – Trustee 

   Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

   Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. James Horan, Director of Facilities 

Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

    

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda.  Mr. Tardoni made a motion to approve the 

agenda.  Mr. Horan seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the April 18, 2023, meeting. Mr. Tardoni 

made a motion to approve the minutes.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. Ms. Love 

abstained as she was absent. 

 

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Johnston was excused from the meeting so there was nothing to report. 

 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Oncology Suite renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley reported the final documents have been signed and executed and Notice to Proceed 

has been issued.  APleasant Construction (APC) is working with their subcontractors.  The 

negotiation of the change order for the door is ongoing and it was agreed that most of the cost will 

be absorbed under general conditions.  APC is working on baseline schedules with trades, subs, 

and materials to keep the schedule coordinated with the patient care area.  Mr. Kelsey asked who 

would be involved from the Hospital side.  Ms. Richardson said we will include the Directors of 

Pharmacy and Medical Oncology at the OAC meetings.  There was also discussion regarding any 

supply chain and inflation issues.  Mr. Wheatley shared some information from the most recent 

ACG national report. 
  

Building Automation System 

 

Mr. Horan said they are still waiting for the weather to warm up to drain the heating system to 

complete the project. 

 

 

154/160



 

 

Minutes of the May 16, 2023, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

Bulk Oxygen  

 

Mr. Horan reported Wylie Construction is onsite now.  They will proceed with the waterline 

project first, which will require a shutdown.  This will not impact the Hospital as we did complete 

the temporary tie-in to the MOB.  

 

Lightning Arrest System 

 

Mr. Horan reported that Wyolectric was also onsite today doing preliminary work and discussing 

the plan to proceed.  Mr. Kelsey asked if there were any concerns and Mr. Horan said he does not 

expect any issues to derail the project.  He estimates the project to be completed by the end of June 

2023. 

 

Medical Imaging Core and X-ray 

 

Mr. Wheatley received the equipment specifications from Siemens, and he will start to work on 

the conceptual layout of the space.  There was discussion about the MRI waiting area and the 

traffic flow for staff and patients. 

 

Laboratory Renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley said the plans are in design now and are expected to be ready for bid later this year.  

There was a discussion about Construction Manager At Risk (CMAR) options for this project due 

to the timing of other projects in the area and available contractors.  Mr. Wheatley recommended 

a CMAR as the local subs are more comfortable with now contractors and the project budgets 

seem to be managed better.  Once the project is bid on, the expected construction is estimated at 

two years.  Ms. Richardson asked if there should be discussion at the State level to ask if timelines 

can be extended as there is concern if all the SLIB awarded projects can be completed with limited 

resources.  Mr. Kelsey asked when we need to make the decision on CMAR versus Design Build 

Bid.  It was agreed the Board should make the decision on which direction to go at the July meeting.  

This committee will discuss at the June meeting a recommendation to the Board.  

 

Capital Construction Grant for Foundation Lab  

 

Ms. Richardson said we are closer to moving the Lab out of the Foundation space so we can start 

the project once decided.  There have been several ideas for this space.  The grant was specifically 

for plumbing issues, and it will be an extensive renovation.  Ms. Richardson said this grant is on 

the same timeline as the SLIB projects. 

 

 

New Business 

 

Ms. Love presented a new project in the MOB.  The University of Utah signed a new lease for 

the space they currently occupy in the MOB.  The lease includes plans for renovating the space 

to update the current exam rooms and for additional exam rooms.  The cost of the project will be 

shared between both parties. Ms. Love will bring the specific request for the project to the next 

Finance & Audit meeting. 

 

155/160



 

 

Minutes of the May 16, 2023, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Richardson to report on the MOB Entrance SLIB project.  She is sensitive 

to moving forward with this project just because we were awarded a grant for half of the project.  

We will look at the priority of this project and how it fits in with the overall Building & Grounds 

plan.  We will add this project to the agenda to keep the discussion going. 

 

Ms. Love described another project we are looking at to create space for the Central Scheduling 

team.  We will be dividing a large storage room, making some space for an office area.  This will 

also be added to the agenda. 

 

Other Business 

 

Ms. Richardson commended this committee and Mr. Kelsey and Mr. Tardoni for helping 

accomplish all the projects over the last couple of years.  The result has been the decrease in the 

age of plant from 14.13 to 10.91.  We are paying attention to the building, maintaining the 

facility, and building assets for a strong balance sheet.  Mr. Tardoni said by State law, we need to 

maintain a breakeven budget to maintain services and invest our gains back into our facility. He 

thanked the staff and Foundation for finding help with funding and said we have done an admiral 

job finding opportunities.  Mr. Kelsey seconded Mr. Tardoni sentiments.  He asked how much 

COVID funds we were able to use on the building.  Ms. Love estimated the amount at $8 

million.   

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, June 20, 2023.  Mr. Horan asked if we would consider 

moving the meeting up to 2:30 pm going forward.   

 

Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting at 4:31 pm. 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

156/160



May 26, 2023 

 

MHSC Board of Trustees Report 
 

The Foundation’s donor wall reception was held on May 1st and went very well. There has been a lot of support and 

interested community members wanting to get added to the wall so that is great! 

We have rolled out the Guardian Angel program and are starting to visit each department to talk about the program and 

how they can get involved. The Guardian Angel program allows patients and their families to recognize and honor 

anyone that made an impact on their healthcare experience at MHSC by making a donation to the Foundation in the 

name of the MHSC team member that impacted their stay.  

Ms. Marshall participated in a tour of the Behavioral Health Unit (BH) at Ivinson Memorial Hospital with some other 

hospital staff. There has been a discussion about potentially adding a BH unit to the hospital. After the visit, Ms. 

Marshall met with the team she traveled to Laramie with and reviewed their feedback. She and Mr. Gerry Johnston met 

with Wil Wheatley from Plan One Architects on 5/25 to discuss potential unit sizes, layouts, and campus locations. Mr. 

Wheatley will create some options and is expected to provide those to Ms. Marshall and Mr. Johnston in six weeks. 

Once received, Ms. Marshall will set up a meeting with the team to review and if approved, the project will be 

presented to the senior leadership team. Ms. Marshall was asked to find funding for the project, so if the proposed 

project is approved and an estimated budget is established, she will start looking into grant and donor funding. 

The Foundation Board has been discussing some investment opportunities since 12-month CD APRs are high. Ms. 

Marshall has reached out to multiple local banks and got rates ranging from 4.5%-4.8% on 12-month investments. In the 

May board meeting, the board voted on changing some of the current CD investments and will be looking to invest up 

to $1M in CDs in the near future. These additional investments would come out of the Foundation’s checking and 

money market accounts and would still leave approximately $900K in liquid cash.  

Ms. Marshall provided the final grant report and documentation for the eHR Implementation Support Grant to the 

Wyoming Department of Health and received the grant payment. The total payment was $722,225 and was signed over 

to the hospital on 5/26/23. This grant is now closed. Note that the original expense total is included in the current MHSC 

approved budget, so this grant award is unbudgeted additional income. 

Ms. Marshall provided a grant report and documentation for the Physician Recruitment and Retention Grant and is 

awaiting the award payment. Due to some of the recruitment fee pay structures with the vendors, we weren’t able to 

capture some of those expenses that were originally outlined in the grant, so the expected total grant payment is 

$81,496.09. Note that the original expense total is included in the current MHSC approved budget, so this grant award is 

also unbudgeted additional income. 

Ms. Marshall also provided MHSC a payment of $24,515.13 to MHSC for Wyoming Cancer Resources Services Grant 

reimbursement.  

The patient entertainment upgrade project has been tested and is ready to go. The IT team has reported that they are 

starting to upgrade the patient televisions, property wide. This project was budgeted at $25,000 which was funded by 

the Foundation.  

The Foundation board approved a $3,200 expenditure to purchase a patient recliner for the Family 

Medicine/Occupational Medicine/Walk-in Clinic for patients who receive lengthy treatments. This is the same chair that 

the Foundation previously purchased for the outpatient services department. The purpose for this purchase is to 

provide the same quality of care at the off-site building as provided in the outpatient services department.  

Submitted by: Tiffany Marshall   

157/160



 

Minutes  

Governance Committee 

May 15, 2023 
 

Present: Irene Richardson, Marty Kelsey, and Barbara Sowada 

Zoom meeting called to order at 2:00 pm  

Agenda approved as written 

 

Old Business 

1. Succession Plan. Irene brought revised Success/Talent Management Plan for review. 

Minor changes to draft made during the meeting. Action: Policy to go to Board for first 

reading at June Board meeting with recommendation for approval.  

2. Criteria for Senior Leadership Compensation policy. Draft of policy reviewed and further 

refined. Action: Policy to go to Executive Compensation & Oversight Committee for their 

review recommendation to present to Board.  

3. CEO Evaluation and Contract. Barbara reported the policy has gone to Executive 

Oversight and Compensation Committee and they are in accord with the policy. Expect 

EO&C Committee will bring policy to June Board meeting for first reading. 

New Business 

1. Draft Appointment of Board Committees. Barbara presented draft of policy and noted 

policy changes would also entail changes to Board Bylaws. Policy tabled. 

2. Election of Officers. Election procedures briefly discussed. No action taken. 

3. Annual Board Evaluation. Historically, the annual evaluation is conducted during the 

June Board meeting. Discussion ensued regarding moving the annual evaluation to the 

December meeting in order to reduce the number of standing items in the June agenda. 

Action: This will be further discussed at the June Board meeting.  

4. Education Offering. Wyoming state statute regarding Memorial Hospitals. 

Meeting adjourned at 3:00 pm. 

Next meeting is June 19, 2021 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

158/160



159/160



Contract Check List 

This check list summarizes the purpose, cost and other contract provisions 

contained in the contract and assures that the contract has been reviewed by 

both the CEO and In-House Legal Counsel. 

1. Name of Contract:  ARUP END USER AGREEMENT  

 

2. Purpose of contract, including scope and description:  Since our laboratory 

doesn’t have the means to perform all lab testing, it is necessary to have 

access to and include a reference laboratory in our services. ARUP is the 

closest laboratory that perform all the tests we need and is recommended 

by our Medical Director.  

 

3. Effective Date:  June 1, 2023  

   

4. Expiration Date: Five years after effective date  

  

5.  Termination provisions:  Can terminate for cause or not for cause. Thirty-

day notice for cause and ninety-day notice for without cause-Sections 6.                               

Is this auto-renew? No  

 

6.   Monetary cost of the contract: Obligated to purchase $51,000 per month 

in lab services. We currently meet that monetary obligation.             Budgeted?   

Yes  

7.  Jurisdiction/Choice of Law provision checked and changed to Wyoming if 

able to so.  No--jurisdiction in Utah. This is company that provides services 

nationwide so jurisdiction remains in the home state of ARUP.  

8.   Any confidentiality provisions? Yes Section 13  

9.  Indemnification clause present?  Yes Section 8 

10.   Is this contract appropriate for other bids?   No  

11.    Is County Attorney review required?  No 

160/160


	Agenda - June 6 2023 Mtg
	Mission and Vision
	Minutes for May 3 2023 Draft
	Minutes for May 11 2023 Special Finance Workshop Draft
	Orientation Memo - Workplace Violence Prevention Policy
	Employee Policies Workplace Violence Prevention Policy June 2023 CLEAN
	Employee Policies Workplace Violence Prevention Policy June 2023 REDLINE
	Orientation Memo - CEO Evaluation
	BOT - CEO Evaluation Policy-Draft[1994]
	Orientation Memo Employee Policies Non Discrimination and Anti Harassment 2023 Amber Fisk
	Employee Policies Non Discrimination and Anti Harassment 2023
	Orientation Memo - Success Talent Management Plan
	Succession- Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan-Draft-History
	Succession- Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan-Draft-History-Changes
	Orientation Memo - Pathology Privilege Form
	Pathology Privilege Form
	Pathology Privileges Previous Form
	Quality Committee
	Human Resources Committee
	FY24 Capital and Operating Budgets
	FY23-42 Siemens MRI Sola Fit Upgrade
	FY23-50 U of U Suite Renovation
	I.S. Report
	Narrative report - April 2023
	23 MHSC Combined Financial Statements 043023
	23 MHSC Clinic Financial Statements 043023
	CASH DISBURSEMENTS-APR
	FY23 County Maintenance & Title 25 Voucher-April
	POTENTIAL BAD DEBT TO FINANCE COMMITTEE MAY
	Financial Goal Graphs - April
	Building and Grounds...Chair&apos;s Report...May, 2023[1990]
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes May 16 2023 Draft Tami Love
	Foundation Board
	Governance Committee
	Spectra Laboratories
	ARUP Laboratories

